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Non sibi sed aliis

- Settled in 1733 by    
James Oglethorpe
- Legislature dates 

to 1751
- Commons House of    

Assembly 1755
- Georgia’s first state   

legislature 1777 

Colonial Georgia



- Capitol built 1889
- Georgia population 
less than 2 million 

people 
- Authority dispersed to   

local governments



The Growing State



Serving the Citizens of Georgia



BY THE NUMBERS
______________

State Agencies: 

80+

Total Entities:

 + 120

State  Employees:  

68,400 +

State government is the 

largest employer in 

Georgia.



Constitutional Officers



Constitutional 

Agencies
______________

State Board of Education

GSFIC

Board of Regents

DOT & State  

Transportation Board

State Board of Pardons 

& Paroles

Board of Natural 

Resources

State Personnel Board

Department of Veterans 

Service & Board





- Department of Revenue

- Department of Driver Services

- Department of Human Services

- Department of Community Health

- Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities

- Department of Labor

- Department of Community Affairs

- Department of Economic Development

- Department of Agriculture

- Department of Transportation

Agencies with High Constituent Interactions



- Georgia Bureau of Investigation

- Georgia Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency

Agencies with High Constituent Interactions



State Revenue 

Commissioner

Frank O’Connell

1800 Century 

Boulevard, NE

Atlanta, GA 30345

www.dor.georgia.gov

Georgia Department of Revenue

The Department of Revenue:

 - Administers collection of state income tax, motor fuel tax, property tax, 

   and sales and use taxes

 - Administers tax laws

    - Enforces laws and regulations for alcoholic beverages and tobacco   

   products

    - Manages motor vehicle tag and title services

 - Promotes taxpayer compliance

 - Administers unclaimed property  

 https://dor.georgia.gov/unclaimed-property-program

https://dor.georgia.gov/unclaimed-property-program




Georgia Department of Revenue: Motor Services Division



Georgia Department of Revenue: Tax Services



Georgia Department of Driver Services

Commissioner  

Spencer R. Moore

2206 East View Parkway

Conyers, GA 30013  

www.dds.georgia.gov



Georgia Department of Human Services

Commissioner

Candice L. Broce

47 Trinity Ave. S.W.

Atlanta, GA 30334

www.dhs.georgia.gov

The Department of Human Services is comprised

 of three divisions:

    - Division of Aging Services

    - Division of Child Support Services

    - Division of Family and Children Services



Georgia Department of Human Services



Georgia Department of Human Services



Georgia Department of Human Services



Georgia Department of Human Services



Georgia Department of Community Health

Commissioner

Russel Carlson

2 Martin Luther King Jr. 

Drive SE

East Tower

Atlanta, GA 30334

www.dch.georgia.gov

The Department of Community Health administers:

 - Medicaid

 - PeachCare for Kids

    - State Health Benefit Plan (SHBP)

    - Healthcare Facility Regulation

 - Certificate of Need (CON) program 

 - Indigent Care Trust Fund

 - State Office of Rural Health

 - Mental Health Parity Complaints

 - Georgia Pathways to Coverage

 -Healthcare Workforce Commission



Georgia Department of Community Health



Georgia Department of Community Health

https://dch.georgia.gov/document/document/hcbs-guide-

11916-3-rev-rd-07092021/download



Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Disabilities 

Commissioner

Kevin Tanner

200 Piedmont Ave, S.E. 

W. Tower, 14th Floor 

Atlanta, GA 30334

www.dbhdd.georgia.gov

- Behavioral Health (MH/SA) Services

- Intellectual and Developmental Disability 

Services

- Hospital Services

- Five State Hospitals

The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 

Disabilities administers:



Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and 

Developmental Disabilities 



Georgia Department of Labor

Commissioner

Vacant

148 Andrew Young 

Int’l Blvd, NE

Atlanta, GA 30303

www.dol.georgia.gov

- Unemployment Insurance (UI) 

- Career Centers

- Employment Programs

- Youth Work Permits

- Veterans Employment Services

- Disaster Unemployment Assistance

- Workforce Statistics & Economic 

Research

The Department of Labor administers:

 



Georgia Department of Community Affairs

Commissioner

Christopher Nunn

60 Executive Park South, NE

Atlanta, GA 30329

www.dca.georgia.gov

https://issuu.com/ga_dca/docs/

guide_to_services_fy2025_final



Georgia Department of Community Affairs



Georgia Department of Economic Development

Commissioner 

Pat Wilson

Technology Square, 

75 5th Street N.W.

Suite 1200 

Atlanta, GA 30308

www.georgia.org



Georgia Department of Agriculture

Commissioner

Tyler Harper

19 MLK, Jr. Dr., S.W.

Atlanta, Georgia  30334

www.agr.georgia.gov

Food Safety and Consumer Protection:

• Grocery stores & convenience stores

• Food manufacturing & warehousing

• Pet dealers/breeders

• Gasoline quality and pump calibration 

• Weights and measures

• Structural pest control

• Nurseries and garden centers

Agriculture:

• Plant diseases, pesticides, insect threat eradication

• Seed, fertilizer, animal feed, and potting soil quality 

• State farmers markets 

• Livestock health/State Veterinarian’s Office

• Hemp program

• Agricultural product marketing/commodities promotion

• Agritourism

The Department of Agriculture regulates, monitors, or assists:



Georgia Department of Agriculture



Georgia Department of Agriculture



Georgia Department of Transportation

Commissioner

Russell McMurry

One Georgia  Center

600 W. Peachtree, NW

Atlanta, GA 30308

www.dot.georgia.gov



Jeff McCord
Carl Vinson Institute of Government
116 Coverdell Legislative Office Building
Atlanta, GA 30334

404-463-6802

jeff.mccord@uga.edu



State Budget Process – The Basics
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What is the current population of 
Georgia?

A. 9.8M

B. 10.5M

C. 11.0M

D. 12.2M



What is the number one 
agricultural product 
grown/produced in Georgia?

A.Cotton
B.Peaches
C. Blueberries
D.Poultry

39





How many executive branch state agencies are part of 
state government?

A. 40
B. 53
C. 82
D. 107 



How do people get on the State Transportation 
Board?

A. Appointed by the Governor
B. Elected by the county commissioners in the 

congressional district
C. Elected by the state legislators from the congressional 

district
D. Jointly appointed by the Governor, Lt. Governor and 

Speaker of the House



What is a budget?



What is a budget?

• Communication tool
• Action Plan
• Allocation of revenue
• Policy Document – leader’s priorities
• Control on expenses
• Constraint, boundaries
• Describes what government does
• Vehicle for open debate



FY 2025 State Revenue Estimate
State Funds $36,136,224,227

Brain and Spinal Injury 

Trust, 0.0%

Income Tax - Corporate, 

8.5%

Income Tax - 

Individual, 43.7%

Insurance Premium Tax, 

1.9%

Interest, Fees, and 

Sales, and transfers, 

7.7%

Lottery for Education, 

4.3%

Motor Fuel Tax, 5.7%

Motor Vehicle 

License and Title 

Ad Valorum, 3.3%

Sales and Use Tax, 

23.2%

Safe Harbor for Children 

Trust Fund, 0.0%

Tobacco and Alcohol, 

1.2%

Tobacco Settlement, 

0.4%



Short Fall Reserves



FY 2025 State Fund Appropriations
State Funds $36,136,224,227
Total Funds $66,836,669,830

Growing Georgia, 

408,227,643 , 1%

Responsible and Efficient Government, 

1,335,139,396 , 4%

Debt Management, 

2,057,568,789 , 6%

Mobile Georgia, 

2,388,903,670 , 7%

Safe Georgia, 

2,645,626,848 , 

7%
Healthy Georgia, 

8,403,867,467 , 

23%

Educated Georgia, 

18,896,890,414 , 

52%



State Budget Cycle

48
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State Organization – The Budget 
Request

Georgia 

General Assembly

House and Senate

Judicial Branch

Governor’s Budget

Recommendation Legislative Branch
(Includes Audits)

OPB

Executive Branch Agencies

Included in Governor’s 

Budget Recommendation as 

submitted

Included in Governor’s 

Budget Recommendation as 

submitted
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Agencies submit 

Annual Operating 

Budgets (AOBs)

Agencies submit budget 

requests to OPB
IMPLEMENT

Fiscal Year Starts July 1

April

May

March February

January

December

November

October

September

July

August

June

Legislative 

Appropriations Process

Georgia’s Annual Budget Cycle

1

2

3

4

5
67

12

8

11

10

9

PREPARE

Budgets Due to OPB 

September 1

APPROPRIATE
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Agencies submit 

Annual Operating 

Budgets (AOBs)

Next year’s budget 

instructions sent to 

agencies

Governor signs 

appropriations bill

OPB budget 

recommendations 

to Governor

Agencies submit budget 

requests to OPB

Governor’s budget to 

General Assembly

Legislature passes appropriations bill & sends it to Governor

Governor Meets w/ 

Agencies

OPB Approves 

AOBs

April

May

March February

January

December

November

October

September

July

August

June

OPB analyzes requests

Governor’s final 

budget decisions

Legislative 

Appropriations Process

Agencies begin preparing 

next year’s budget 

requests

OPB manages and monitors the budget 

through amendments and allotments. OPB 

reviews expenditures & consults with 

agencies on budget issues.

Start

Georgia’s Annual Budget Cycle

1

2

3

4

5
67

12

8

11

10

9





Senate Version



House Version



2024

May

2024

July

2024

Sept.

2024

December

2025

January - March

FY 2024

Close Out

4th Quarter Close Out FY Audit/

SAO 

Financial 

Statements

FY 2025

Monitor

AOB

Implement-

ation Plans

New FY

Starts

Amendments/Allotments

(Amended Appropriations Act)

FY 2026

Develop

Strategic Plan 

and Budget 

Planning

Agency 

Develop 

Budget

Request

Agencies 

Submit 

Budget 

Requests

Governor’s 

Budget

Recommend-

ation

Appropriations

Act

State Budget Cycle –  three fiscal years at once



56 UNIVERSITY 101



How a Bill Becomes a Law



Since 1927, the Carl Vinson Institute of Government has 
been an integral part of the University of Georgia. A 

public service and outreach unit of the university, the 
Institute of Government is the largest and most 

comprehensive university based organization serving 
governments in the United States through research 

services, customized assistance, training and 
development, and the application of technology.



Since 1927, the Carl Vinson Institute of Government has 
been an integral part of the University of Georgia. A 

public service and outreach unit of the university, the 
Institute of Government is the largest and most 

comprehensive university based organization serving 
governments in the United States through research 

services, customized assistance, training and 
development, and the application of technology.



Since 1927, the Carl Vinson Institute of Government has 
been an integral part of the University of Georgia. A 

public service and outreach unit of the university, the 
Institute of Government is the largest and most 

comprehensive university based organization serving 
governments in the United States through research 

services, customized assistance, training and 
development, and the application of technology.



The Idea

A Legislator sees:
• A need for a new law, or
• A need for changes in the 

existing law



The Idea

• Personal Experiences
• State Agencies
• Study Committee Reports
• Constituents
• The News Media
• Events
• Etc.



Drafting Legislation

Legislator visits the Office of 
Legislative Counsel (OLC)

OLC attorney advises on 
legal issues and drafts the 
bill

Legislator files bill with the 
Clerk of the House or 
Secretary of the Senate



Introduction and Committee Assignment

Bill is formally introduced

The presiding officer assigns 
it to a standing committee

In the House, the Clerk reads 
the bill’s title



Possible Committee Actions

• Pass the bill with or without amendments

• Pass the bill as a committee substitute

• Report the measure out unfavorably 

• Hold the bill without reporting it



The Rules Committee

“The daily legislative agenda on 

the floor of each chamber is 

governed by a rules calendar 

prepared by each chamber’s 

Rules Committee.”

-Carl Vinson Institute of Government - University of Georgia, Handbook for 
Georgia Legislators



Floor Consideration



The Other Chamber

• If second chamber passes the bill, it is returned to the 
chamber where it was introduced

• If it was changed (by amendment, substitute or both) in 
the second chamber, the first chamber can accept the 
changes

• If the first chamber rejects the changes and the second 
chamber insists on the changes then:

• A conference committee is appointed



Bill Signature or Veto

The Governor may…

• Sign the bill

• Do nothing

• Veto (requires two-thirds of 
members of each chamber 
to override)



Let’s Pause for Perspective

• 1,738 bills were considered during 2024 Session

• 812 of the that number were pending from 2023

• 361 bills were sent to the Governor for approval in 2024

• 12 bills were vetoed by the Governor in 2024



A Georgia Legislative Story



Questions?
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